the subject "The Judiciary in Modern Democracy." For the academic year 1960–61 the Freund Lecture was given by the Right Honorable Lord Parker of Waddington, The Lord Chief Justice of England, on "The English System of Tribunals and Enquiries."

The Henry C. Simons Memorial Lectureship was established in 1955 as a biennial lectureship in the field of law and economics, in honor of Henry C. Simons, for many years a distinguished member of the Faculty of the Law School and of the Department of Economics. The first Simons Lecture was given in February, 1958, by George Stigler, then Professor of Economics, Columbia University, on "The Goals of Economic Policy." The second Simons Lecture was given November 18, 1959, by Jacob Viner, Professor of Economics, Princeton University, on "The Intellectual History of Laissez-Faire."

The C. R. Musser Lectureship, an endowed lectureship in honor of a distinguished citizen, was established by the University in 1955 out of funds previously given to the Law School by the General Service Foundation. The lectureship is awarded for a public lecture on some phase of the problems of government, to be given by an experienced citizen who has held public office. The first Musser Lecture will be given on November 29, 1961, by Willard F. Libby, former member of the Atomic Energy Commission and now Professor of Chemistry at the University of California, Los Angeles, on the subject "Science in Administration."

The Federal Tax Conference is an annual three-day conference sponsored by the Law School and participated in by tax specialists from all over the United States. The conference is planned in co-operation with members of the tax bar in Chicago. Professor Walter Blum is in charge of the Law School's sponsorship of the conference. During the academic year 1960–61 the Tax Conference was held October 26–28. The Federal Tax Conference for the academic year 1961–62 will be held October 25–27.

XIX. Student Activities and Honors

The University of Chicago Law Review, founded in 1933, is published by the School under the management of a Board of Editors composed of students. Students ranking highest in scholarship upon completion of their first year are invited to become competitors for election to the staff of the Review. From this group the editorial staff and the Board of Editors are chosen. For the year 1960–61, Erwin A. Tomaschoff was Editor-in-Chief until his graduation in December, when Richard M. Harter became the new Editor-in-Chief. The Managing Editors were Donald E. Egan, James E. Hautzinger, C. Keith Rooker, and (until December) Richard M. Harter. The Associate Editors were Richard F. Broude, John M. Cannon, Mary Ann Glendon, Thomas N. Jersild, Donald A. Mackay, Allen M. Turner, Donald M. Wessling, Michael W. Zavis, Donald S. Zinn, and, for a part of the year, Richard C. Fox and Earl Johnson. The Editor-in-Chief for 1961–62 is David P. Earle III. Managing Editors are Charles H. Gustafson, John M. Junker, Henry H. Stern, Jr., and Gerald S. Witherspoon. The Associate Editors are Donald W. Glaves, Richard Harris, Richard L. Marcus, Fred A. Mauck, Bethilda Olson, Gerald Sherman, Stephen E. Tallent, William L. Velton, and Norman Vieira.

The Moot Court Committee conducts the Hinton Competition, a two-year round robin moot court program open to all students after their first year who wish to advance their technique in the art of brief writing and oral argument. Prizes are awarded to winners of the competition; the team that represents the Law School in national competition is selected from among the most successful competitors in the second year. Co-Chairmen of the Committee during the academic year 1960–61 were Donald L. Janis and Edward N. Thomson. The following awards for achievement were made in the
1960–61 competition: Lawrence H. Eiger and Donald L. Janis, competition winners; in the second year competition, Frederick W. Huszagh and Thomas B. Rutter, best brief; and Ronald L. Engel, best oral argument. Fred K. Grant received the American Association of Trial Lawyers' Cup for the best oral argument of the region. The Law School's team in the 1960–61 national competition was composed of Fred K. Grant, Robert C. Bills, Jr., and Larry P. Scriggins. The 1961–62 national moot court team is composed of Ronald L. Engel, Frederick W. Huszagh, and Thomas B. Rutter. The Chairman of the Committee for 1961–62 is Harold S. Russell.

The Edwin F. Mandel Legal Aid Clinic, made possible through a gift from Mr. Edwin F. Mandel, was established in 1957 to provide needed legal services for indigent persons and for the training of Law School students in the handling of cases under supervision. Henry J. Kaganiec is Director of the Edwin F. Mandel Legal Aid Clinic. The 1960–61 officers were Jerry Pruzansky, President; George P. Blake, First Vice-President; Donald C. Dowling, Second Vice-President; and Thomas D. Schwartz, Secretary-Treasurer. The officers for 1961–62 are Alvin G. Becker, President; David S. Chernoff, Vice-President; and Robert D. Baldwin, Secretary-Treasurer. The members of the Board of Directors are James T. Canivan, Robert A. Woodford, and William G. Pfefferkorn.

The University of Chicago Law School Student Association is composed of the entire student body and is affiliated with the American Law Student Association, a national organization sponsored by the Junior Bar Conference and the American Bar Association. The Student Association sponsors various legal and social functions throughout the year. The 1960–61 officers were Richard H. Newhouse, Jr., Chairman; James A. Malkus, Vice-President; James A. Donohoe, Secretary; and David S. Chernoff, Treasurer. The President of the Senior Class for 1961–62 and Chairman of the Council of the Association is Martin N. Burke III.

The Chicago Chapter of the Order of the Coif is an honor society founded to encourage and to advance the ethical standards of the legal profession. Its members are elected each spring from the 10 per cent of the graduating class who rank highest in scholarship. In 1960–61 the elected members were Richard F. Broude, Gary L. Cowan, Donald E. Egan, Richard C. Fox, Richard M. Harter, James E. Hautzinger, Donald A. Mackay, Nancy G. McDermid, Clifton K. Rooker, Erwin A. Tomaschoff, Donald M. Wessling, and Donald S. Zinn.

The Joseph Henry Beale Prize, named in honor of the first Dean of the Law School, is awarded to the first-year student whose work in the first-year tutorial program is judged by the Faculty to be most worthy of special recognition. The prize for 1960–61 was awarded to Dorsey D. Ellis, Jr., and George W. Liebmann.

The Institute for International Order offers two prizes for winning essays on subjects designated annually.

The Lawyers Co-operative Publishing Company and the Bancroft-Whitney Company, joint publishers of American Jurisprudence, annually make available the relevant separately bound subjects from American Jurisprudence as an award to the highest ranking students in various course areas.

The Lawyers Title Award, sponsored by the Lawyers Title Insurance Corporation, Richmond, Virginia, is awarded annually to a student for excellence in work in the field of real estate. The award was given in 1960–61 to James E. Hautzinger.

The Edwin F. Mandel Award is made annually to that member of the graduating class who, during his Law School career, has contributed the most to the Legal Aid program, both in the quality of the work done and the conscientious exercise of legal aid responsibilities. The award for 1960–61 was made to James Valentino, Jr.
The Nathan Burkan Memorial Competition Prizes, sponsored by the American Society of Composers, Authors, and Publishers, are available annually to two students whose papers in the field of copyright law are deemed by the Faculty to be worthy of the prizes. The first prize for 1960-61 was awarded to Ronald G. Hillebrand and the second prize to Gerald Sherman.

The "Wall Street Journal" Award is given annually to a student for excellence in work in the field of corporation law. The award for 1960-61 was given to Louis E. Rosen.

XX. Placement

The Law School maintains a placement office to help students find suitable employment after their graduation. In collaboration with the Law School Alumni Association, special placement groups in large cities, and the University's general placement office, it secures information about openings in law offices, corporations, and government offices throughout the country and furnishes information about University of Chicago Law School graduates. The Placement Office also assists in arrangements for teaching positions; through the Comparative Law Center, efforts are made to place properly qualified students in research centers and other institutions abroad and to help foreign students to find opportunities for study and research in American law.

Early in their third year, students submit placement data indicating their plans and preferences after graduation. It is important that these records, which facilitate appropriate recommendations, be filled out accurately and kept up to date. Accordingly students whose plans or preferences change during the third year are asked to indicate such changes to the Placement Office. In the event that a student enters the armed forces following his graduation, the facilities of the Placement Office are available to him upon his return to civilian status. All third-year students have a personal interview with Dean Ratcliffe, who is Director of Placement. Other members of the faculty are also available for consultation and advice.

XXI. Buildings and Library

The Law Quadrangle, on the south side of the Midway Plaisance, contains four connected buildings: the Auditorium-Courtroom Building; the Classroom-Seminar Building; the Library-Office Building; the Administration Building. The buildings, designed by Eero Saarinen, use twentieth-century materials, techniques, and design concepts. The architect has related the new buildings in the quadrangle to the Burton-Judson Residence Halls and to the American Bar Center. An open court, with a reflecting pool, is at the center of the group of buildings.

The Auditorium-Courtroom Building is situated in such a way that it is directly accessible to the public. It contains an auditorium seating 475 and the Weymouth Kirkland Courtroom, which seats 175. The Weymouth Kirkland Courtroom is a completely equipped courtroom, providing facilities for the moot court program of the School and for official cases. Rooms on two floors on both sides of the Weymouth Kirkland Courtroom are provided for judges, court officials, and lawyers.

The Classroom-Seminar Building lies between the Auditorium-Courtroom and the Library-Office Building. There are five seminar-conference rooms, accommodating 18 to 43 students, and four classrooms varying in capacity from 85 to 175. A large area for student lockers and lounges is located on the lower floor. The Edwin F. Mandel Legal Aid Clinic is also located in the Classroom-Seminar Building with direct access to University Avenue on the east. The Building includes a wide arcade-like corridor—the